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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 11, 2017 

DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2017-0513 

919 VALDEZ STREET 

 

PROPOSAL 

Demolish a church building moved onto the property in 1957. 

 

ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, front-gabled wood-frame building constructed in a vernacular 

style with a shed-roofed addition. The building is clad in shiplap wood siding and features 

8-light wood-sash windows and a partially enclosed entry porch. A small gable-roofed bell 

tower sits atop the ridge line. 

 

RESEARCH 

919 Valdez Street was constructed on Bergstrom Air Force Base as a military barracks. In 

1957, Fernando C. (Fred) and Mary Resendez Powers purchased and moved this building 

and one other from the base. The building at 919 Valdez served as a mission church 

beginning in 1959, while the building at 917 Valdez Street became the Powers’ home. 

 

An ordained minister who was fluent in Spanish, Mary Powers chose Montopolis with the 

goal of ministering to the neighborhood’s predominantly Hispanic community. At the time, 

Montopolis had approximately 2,000 residents. According to Powers’s daughter Mary 

Garcia, the Gethsemane Assembly of God was the first nondenominational Protestant 

church in the neighborhood and drew congregation members who lived nearby. At its peak, 

40 to 60 people attended services in the church, though only three families—children of 

original congregants—were still attending when the church shuttered its doors circa 2010. 

Ms. Garcia said that she felt the church had “served its purpose.” 

 

The building was expanded early on to meet the church’s needs. In 1961, a one-story frame 

addition was constructed on the north side of the building to house a kitchen and dining 

room, as well as Sunday school classrooms. A one-story masonry addition at the northeast 

corner was proposed in 1977-78. However, it is not clear if it was built, as the entire 

building appears to be of wood-frame construction. 

 

The Gethsemane Assembly of God was chartered in 1957 and first located at 807 

Montopolis Drive. Records from the General Council of the Assemblies of God show that the 

church was chartered as Gethsemane de las Asambleas de Dios, though Austin city 

directories list the name in English. The church changed its name twice: in 1971 to 

Gethsemani de las Asambleas de Dios and in 2006 to Gethsemani Assembly of God.  

 

STAFF COMMENTS 

The house is beyond the bounds of any City survey. It is not designated at the state or 

national levels. 

 

919 Valdez Street does not appear to meet the criteria for designation as a historic 

landmark. 

 

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
1) The building is more than 50 years old, having been constructed prior to 1957. 



 D.2 - 2 

2) The building retains a moderate degree of integrity. Though the building’s materials 

appear to be original, it sustained a large side addition. It was moved from its 

original location; however, its primary association in this consideration is with the 

Gethsemane Assembly of God in its current location. 

3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation 

(City of Austin Land Development Code (Section 25-2-352). The property does not 

appear to demonstrate significance according to any of the criteria. 

a. Architecture. The building is built in a vernacular style. It does not appear to 

be architecturally significant. 

b. Historical association. The building was associated with an Assembly of God 

congregation from 1959 until circa 2010. However, there do not appear to be 

significant historical associations based on archival research and community 

inquiries. 

c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield 

significant data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 

d. Community value. The property does not possess a unique location, physical 

characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, image, 

or cultural identity of the city, the Montopolis neighborhood, or a particular 

group. Rev. Mary Powers made house visits to invite people to attend church, 

and the church held garage sales and Thanksgiving dinners open to 

neighborhood residents. However, the church did not play a significant role in 

Montopolis’s history. It is not listed on a 1995 USGS topographic map that 

includes landmarks such as the cemetery, country club, trailer park, school, 

parks, drive-in theater, and Dolores Church (which did actively engage in 

addressing neighborhood issues in the 1950s-60s and onward). 

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed 

landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive re-use. If rehabilitation and adaptive re-use are not 

feasible, then encourage relocation over demolition and release the permit upon completion 

of a City of Austin Documentation Package consisting of photographs of all elevations, a 

dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for archiving at the Austin History 

Center. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 

 
Primary (west) façade of 919 Valdez Street 

 

 
Detail of north elevation 
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Building, n.d. (Source: Austin’s Montopolis Neighborhood, by Fred L. McGhee, p. 88) 
 

 
Occupancy History 

City directory research, Austin History Center 

By Historic Preservation Office staff 

October 2017 

 

1955 Address not listed 

 

1959 Address not listed 

 

1962-73 Gethsemane Assembly of God 

 Rev. Mary Powers is listed from ca. 1968 to ca. 1973. 

 

1977-86 Templo Getsemani de las Asambleos [sic] de Dios 

 

 

Occupant Notes 

No information was found on Gethsemane Assembly of God or Templo Getsemani in 

newspaper archives, with the exception of a few funeral notices. 

 

Rev. Mary Resendez Powers was born in 1928 and grew up in San Antonio. She married 

Fernando (Fred) Powers and had at least three children. In 1953, she and her family were 

living on W. James Street; by 1954, they had moved to 917 Valdez Street. Rev. Powers 

ministered to the congregation until 2010, two years before her death in 2012. 

 

Fernando C. (Fred) Powers was born in 1915 to an American father and Mexican mother. 

He spent his early years in El Paso. He served in the Army from 1944 to 1952 and worked 
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as a baker at Pan Dandy after leaving (see article excerpt below). By 1987, Fred and his 

family had moved to Pflugerville, where he died in 1999. 

 

 
 

 
Building Permits 

 
Permit to relocate, repair, and convert a building into a church, 12/20/1957. 
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Sewer permit, 12/20/1959. 

 
Building permit for wood-frame addition, 4/12/1961. 
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Inspection form for wood-frame addition, 5/18/1961. 

 

 
Building permit for masonry addition, 3/7/1978. It is not clear if the addition was constructed. 
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Inspection form for masonry addition, 3/7/1978. It is not clear if the addition was constructed. 


